ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 26, 2015
8:11 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative David Tal erico
Representative Liz Vazquez
Representative Loui se Stutes
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 117
"An  Act requiring a report on untested sexual assaul t
exam nation kits; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 61

"An Act relating to special notor vehicle registration plates
for recipients of the Bronze Star, Silver Star, or other
meritorious service awards; and providing for an effective
date."

- MOVED CSHB 61( STA) OUT OF COWMM TTEE
PREVI OUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 117

SHORT TITLE: SEXUAL ASSAULT EXAM NATI ON KI TS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) TARR

02/ 18/ 15 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 18/ 15 (H) STA, JUD, FIN

03/ 26/ 15 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 61

SHORT TITLE: M LI TARY MERI TORI OQUS AWARD LI CENSE PLATES

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 26, 2015



SPONSCR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) GARA, GRUENBERG, VAZQUEZ, LYNN,
LEDQOUX

01/ 21/ 15 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 16/ 15

01/ 21/ 15 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 15 (H) MV, STA, FIN

02/ 10/ 15 (H) M.V AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 10/ 15 (H) Heard & Held

02/ 10/ 15 (H M NUTE( MLV)

02/ 26/ 15 (H) M.V AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 26/ 15 (H Moved CSHB 61(MV) Qut of Conmittee

02/ 26/ 15 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

02/ 27/ 15 (H) M.V RPT CS(M.V) NT 5DP

02/ 27/ 15 (H DP: TUCK, CGRUENBERG, LEDQUX, LYNN,
HERRON

03/ 26/ 15 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE GERAN TARR

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As prine sponsor, presented HB 117.

RAY FRI EDLANDER, St af f

Representative Geran Tarr

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Present ed HB 117 on behal f of
Representative Tarr, prinme sponsor.

ORI N DYM Forensi c Laboratory Manager

Scientific Crine Detection Laboratory (SCDL)

Department of Public Safety (DPS)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  During the hearing on HB 117, testified and
answered questions with regard to sexual assault Kkits.

LI EUTENANT RODNEY DI AL, Deputy Conmander

Di vision of Al aska State Troopers

A Det achnent

Department of Public Safety (DPS)

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  During the hearing on HB 117, testified and
answer ed questions.

SKYLER HEARN, Assistant Director

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 26, 2015



Law Enf orcenent Support Division

Texas Departnent of Public Safety

Austin, Texas

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 117, testified as
to the Texas Departnment of Public Safety's policy.

H LARY MARTI N, Attorney

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services

Legi sl ative Affairs Agency

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  During the hearing on HB 117, testified and
answer ed questi ons.

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As joint prine sponsor, presented HB 61

LAURENCE GORDACFF

Al aska Native Veterans Associ ation

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 61, testified.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:11:15 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmittee
neeting to order at 8:11 a.m Representatives Talerico, Stutes,
Kel | er, Vazquez, and Lynn were present at the call to order.
Representatives Guenberg and Kreiss-Tonkins arrived as the
nmeeti ng was in progress.

HB 117- SEXUAL ASSAULT EXAM NATI ON KI TS

[Due to technical difficulties portions of audio are
i ndi scerni bl e throughout. ]

8:11:34 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced the first order of business was HOUSE BILL
NO. 117, HOUSE BILL NO 117, "An Act requiring a report on
untested sexual assault exam nation kits; and providing for an
effective date.”

8:12:32 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 26, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nobved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 117, |labeled 29-LS0386\W Martin,

3/ 24/ 15, as a work draft. There being no objection, Version W
was before the conmittee.

8:12: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GERAN TARR, Alaska State Legislature, as prine
sponsor, presented HB 117, and explained that in terns of where
the sexual assault kits are sent and the timng in testing the
kits, there is disorganization in the current process. She said
Al aska has the highest rate of rape and sexual assault in the
nation, and opined that HB 117 is the first step in addressing
t he issue.

8:14: 32 AM

RAY FRI EDLANDER, Staff, Representative CGeran Tarr, Alaska State
Legi slature, on behalf of Representative Tarr, prinme sponsor,

expl ained that the Departnment of Public Safety (DPS) finds this
bill to be so inportant that it does not foresee any additiona

funds or infrastructure requirenent in inplenmenting the audit
and preparing a report for the legislature. She referred to the
fiscal notes and advised that the original bill was drafted in a
manner that the attorney general reaches out to local |[|aw
enforcenent agencies to obtain the nunber [of kits], prepare the
report, and deliver the report to the |egislature. She pointed
out that the first fiscal note is $15 000; however, the
Departnment of Public Safety, subsequent to that fiscal note,

expressed willingness to "take this project on" at zero dollars,

because it is "that inportant."”

M5. FRIEDLANDER, in response to Chair Lynn, advised there is a
zero fiscal note.

8:15:34 AM

M5. FRIEDLANDER rel ayed that under Version W of HB 117, |oca
| aw agencies wll, by July 1, 2015, report the nunber of
untested sexual assault kits in their possession. In response
to Chair Lynn, she confirnmed that this relates to kits already
used, but not yet analyzed. She said DPS will conpile a report,
by Septenber 1, 2015, detailing the nunmber of untested sexua
assault exam nation kits stored by each |aw enforcenent agency,
the date each kits was collected, and present the report to the
| egi sl ature. She then referred to page 2, line 10, of HB 117,
whi ch read:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 26, 2015



(d) In this section, "untested sexual assault
exam nation kit" mnmeans a sexual assault exam nation
kit that has been collected but has not been submtted
to a | aboratory operated or approved by the Departnent
of Public Safety for either a serological or DNA test.

M5. FRI EDLANDER advised this is a definition of an untested
sexual assault exam nation kit.

8:18:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked for clarification of changes that
were made in Version W She pointed to bill |anguage on page 1,
[ Section 1], of HB 117, [regarding which entity would get an
inventory of untested sexual assault exam nation kits].

MS. FRI EDLANDER nade a comment about how the |length of "attorney
general"” [the entity chosen in the original bill version] and
"Departnment of Public Safety" [the entity changed to in Version
W were different, and how that mght affect where they fell
along a line.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR spoke about the change from "the attorney

general", [on page 1, line 12, of the original bill], to "the
Departnment of Public Safety", [on page 1, line 13, of Version
W.

8:20: 03 AM

M5. FRI EDLANDER expl ai ned that a sexual assault kit or rape kit
is a kit or box filled with tools that nay be used by an
exam ner while collecting evidence, such as the perpetrator's
deoxyri bonucleic acid (DNA), and from the sexual assault victim
The contents of the kit vary by state, she noted, but could
include the follow ng: bags and sheets, swabs, conbs, envel opes,
bl ood collection devices, and docunentation forns. She said
Oin Dym forensic |aboratory manager of DPS's Scientific Crine
Detection Laboratory (SCDL), was present to testify and would
provi de a denonstration. She relayed that the exam in addition
to those materials, can also contain a physical conponent
wherein the exam ner collects (indisc.).

8:20: 57 AM

CHAIR LYNN (indisc.) the kit and other medical procedures.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 26, 2015



M5. FRI EDLANDER stated she believes so, and deferred to M. Dym
She continued that the evidence is conpiled into the sexual
assault kit, stored to ensure contam nation does not occur, and
mai ntai ned under a chain of custody wuntil further action is
taken with the Kkit. An area of concern, she pointed out, is
that sonme of the sexual assault kits are shelved by their
respective agencies for a variety of reasons and are
[ unprocessed] . (Indisc.) the State of Alaska does not have a
single, uniform protocol wutilized by the 150 |aw enforcenent
agencies to do the sane. She said that, in essence, there could
be a local |aw enforcement agency in Al aska [in possession of]
untested sexual assault kits potentially containing DNA that
could renove rapists from Alaska s streets. Unfortunately,
there is no data base or manner to nanage untested, shelved
sexual assault kits, she expl ai ned. (I'ndisc.) there has been a
national novenent, and states conducting audits have found
t housands of wuntested sexual assault kits sitting on their
shelves contributing to a major rape kit backl og. I n response
to a question from Chair Lynn, she confirmed that those audits
had been done in other states. (Indisc) three times the
national average (indisc.). She suggested the capture of
rapi sts was being delayed by not having the kits processed, and
she questioned why the kits were not being processed.

8:23:14 AM

CHAIR LYNN opined that if sonmeone was raped, an exan nation
would be performed with a rape kit and possibly shelved
somepl ace and, as a result, the DNA fromthe rapist would not be
t est ed. He pointed out that if the DNA was tested, it nmay be
possible to match it wth sonmeone already on file. He ventured
that there are serial rapists running | oose on the streets whose
DNA is on file, but because of the delay in testing the Kkits
these rapists are not arrested. He clarified that while his
statenent is not a fact, it could be occurring.

M5. FRI EDLANDER answered that is correct. She offered her
understanding that the current practice is to process the
perpetrator's DNA when avail able; however, before the Conbined
DNA | ndex System (CODIS) - a database used by the Federal Bureau

of Investigation (FBlI) - existed, it was difficult for states to
process DNA, so sone states kept untested rape kits dating back
to the '70s and '80s. She added she was not confortable
speaking "on that particular topic,” but noted she had "a

variety of reasons why kits aren't tested."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 26, 2015



CHAIR LYNN (indisc.) and while there nay not be a known suspect,
soneone's DNA nay be on file [from sone other crine].

REPRESENTATI VE TARR offered that the prosecution of these cases
may not happen i mmedi ately because the case may not go to tria
for a long period of tine. She highlighted that for the period
of time the testing has not taken place, that individual may be
commtting other crines; therefore, she pointed out, expediency
to the process is vital.

CHAIR LYNN surm sed that the matter will not go to trial wthout
a suspect, and the suspect will not be found until the DNA is
t est ed.

8:26: 33 AM

M5. FRI EDLANDER advi sed that working in conjunction wth Senator
Berta Gardner, the bill sponsor asked Legislative Legal and
Research Services to conduct a research brief to determ ne: how
many untested kits are in Alaska, which |aboratories have a

backl og, and the reasons [the kits were untested]. She said the
aforementioned M. Dym when asked by Legislative Legal and
Research Services about the nunber of kits, responded, "I don't

know - the department does not know how nany conpleted sexua
assault evidence collection kits have been utilized by the |aw
enforcenent agency but not yet subnmitted to the crine lab for

testing.”" Further, she said, Al aska has no policy, regulation
or statute establishing tinmeframes for testing sexual assault
kits, and no federal nandate requires coordination. She

reiterated that Al aska has 150 |ocal |aw enforcenent agencies,
and it is difficult to know how nmany untested sexual assault
kits there are, even at SCDL.

8:27:45 AM

M5. FRIEDLANDER said that prior to February 1, 2015, there were
no requirements by SCDL to return the kits back from |ocal |aw
enf orcenent agencies, hospitals, or other agencies. She said
begi nning February 1, SCDL requires that all kits are sent back
to the lab, which could offer a better understanding of the
nunber of Kkits collected and anal yzed; however, the requirenent
was nmade only of the Alaska State Troopers (AST) and does not
include all of the 150 local law enforcenent agencies in the
state. Further, it does not require the State Troopers to send
in kits [collected] prior to February 1, 2015. She expl ai ned
that SCDL has a thorough protocol for |ogging evidence such as
rape kits, but no procedure to capture the data or create a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 26, 2015



uniform process to ensure kits are not |ost or shelved. She
rel ated that when agencies send a kit into the lab, it nay | abel
the kit in a conmpletely different manner than SCDL's | abel,
whi ch coul d make accounting for the kits difficult. |In response
to Chair Lynn, she confirmed there is no standardization of
| abel i ng.

8:29:39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR offered that as it was described by M. Dym
rape kits cone to SCDL with |language in the manner the officer
or whoever processed it, wote it - with no standard protocol
therefore, there is no easy way to conpare notes, because people
use a different set of terns to describe the mterials
submi tted.

8:30: 27 AM

M5. FRI EDLANDER directed attention to a Legislative Legal and
Resear ch Servi ces research brief, [from Tim Spengler
Legi slative Analyst, to Senator Gardner, dated 2/13/15, included
in the commttee packet], which indicates the nunber of kits
tested in Alaska in each of the last five years, and shows that
443 kits had been tested in 2014. She then referred to an enai
correspondence [from Dean WIIlianms, Special Assistant, DPS, to
Ms. Friedlander, dated 3/24/15, included in the conmttee
packet], which contains a report submtted by [M. Dyn] that
indicates 395 kits were submtted in 2014. She said M. Dym
expl ai ned the reason for the discrepancy was that he had thought
the researcher from Legislative Legal and Research Services had
asked for the nunber of cases - not kits. Ms. Friedl ander
expl ained that this, again, shows the difficulty in term nol ogy:
a case may have many different rape kits linked with it, because
there could be one used for the suspect and another for the
victim She expl ained another reason for the discrepancy could
be that they were processing rape kit backlog from previous
years. She noted the sponsor was surprised in that this is such
an inportant and conplicated issue, yet no protocols have been
devel oped.

8:32: 04 AM

M5. FRI EDLANDER directed attention to an article from Al aska
D spatch News, entitled, "New FBI definition increases Al aska's

already high rape rate,” [included in the conmttee packet].
She advised the FBI lists that there were 922 rapes in Al aska in
2013, while the aforenentioned brief lists 617 for the sane

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 26, 2015



year. Provided that the rape kits were used in conjunction with
every rape, she questioned what happened to the approximtely
300 kits not processed and why they did not get tested. She
expressed that the thought of serial rapists on the streets

because of wuntested kits is frightening. She noted that the
difficulty in conveying information from the state's crinme |ab
alone - not including the 150 |ocal |aw enforcenent agencies -

further denonstrates the need for an audit.

M5. FRI EDLANDER sai d DPS has been supportive and guarantees that
an audit wll not require additional infrastructure or staff
time, thereby, allowing a zero fiscal note. Local [|aw
enforcenment agencies, such as the Anchorage Police Departnent,
have begun submtting nunbers and untested sexual assault Kkits
[in anticipation of the passage of HB 117]. She remarked that
the respective agencies involved understand the inportance of an
audit as the first step in addressing successful managenent of
the kits.

8:33: 38 AM

M5. FRI EDLANDER stressed that the audit will not only shed |ight
on the extent of the untested sexual kit backlog, but also help
qualify Alaska to receive noney from the U S. Departnment of
Justice, the Ofice of Justice Prograns, and "the Bureau of
Justice" in addressing Al aska's backlog. She expl ai ned that
being able to include, in these grants, information such as:
Al aska has "X' anount of kits, reasons why they have not been
tested, and information on the staff and |aboratory capabilities
charged with processing the kits, wll best assist Alaska in
qualifying for these avail abl e funds.

8:35:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked whether it is possible for the
victimto choose to not have a kit tested.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR answered that the victimcould choose not to
press charges, and the rape kit would not automatically have to
be test ed.

CHAIR LYNN clarified that the question was whether a victim
could choose not to be tested. In response to Representative
Tarr, he stated that pressing charges and choosing not to be
tested are two different issues.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 26, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE TARR expl ained that SCDL receives a request for
services from the prosecuting agency, but if the crinme is not
prosecuted, there would be no request for service. She added,
"So, there's the potential for that to be another problem"”

8:36: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked whether (indisc.) cane from the
prosecutor's office rather than froma | aw enforcenent agency.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR opi ned they could conme from both, as the |aw
enforcenment agency would be working in conjunction with the
prosecuting agency.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked for further details regardi ng what
happens if a victim does not want the kit to be tested and
notifies the police officer or trooper in that regard.

8:37:37 AM

MR. FRI EDLANDER deferred to M. Dym but reiterated that she had
a list of reasons as to why kits go untested.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked how many victinms request that the
kits not be tested.

M5. FRI EDLANDER agai n deferred the question to M. Dym
8:38: 09 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS requested the aforenentioned I|ist.

M5. FRI EDLANDER naned the foll ow ng reasons: cost of analysis -
| ocal |aw enforcenent agencies sonetines only pursue cases wth
the best chance of being solved; cases in which the alleged
rapist is not a stranger to the victim whereby the suspect's
identity was not an issue; the victim decided not to pursue
prosecution; other issues with evidence, wtnesses, or victins,
resulting in a decision that the case was not prosecutable; the
lab was contacted by the submtting agency to wthdraw the
request for analysis; the kit was collected beyond the tinmefrane
in which detectable, scientific evidence would remain; analysis
would not yield interpretable findings owing to the limtations
of the scientific nethod; tests with low scientific value may
take up to 14 nonths; anonynous reporting; cases not
prosecutable; issues related to consent; and the kit was not
submtted to the |ab. She said the audit is inportant in that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 26, 2015



it could, at least, highlight why the kit had not been
processed. She suggested that catching even one rapist through
processing untested sexual assault kits would be worth [the
effort] for Al aska.

8:40: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked who ultimately decides whether to
pr osecut e.

M5. FRI EDLANDER sai d she was not sure.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested it was the Departnent of Law
(DOL) and asked whether the audit process includes asking
guestions of DOL, since that departnent makes the ultimte
deci si on.

8:40: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR opi ned that DPS would coordinate the effort
of conpiling necessary information, and it would be included as
one of the agencies anong the 150 |aw enforcenment and other
agencies that would be a part of this. She indicated that DOL
woul d al so submit information that would be part of the audit.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that DOL nmkes the ultimate
decision to prosecute, and he suggested the sponsor speak with
DOL to "find out additional information," because w thout doing
so, "you won't get the ultinate decider."

8:41: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ noted (indisc.) definitive decision as it
is ultimtely the prosecutor (indisc.) gets a file and has the
kit tested believing it is a good case, (indisc.) that decision
before he submts the case to the prosecutor is her interest.
She noted that historically there was a "bad" backlog wthin
SCDL before the new crine lab was built. Usually, she said, the
prosecutor had to specifically request the testing, because |aw
enforcenment did not want to proceed with the testing if the
prosecutor was not going to go forward with the case. She
recomends clarifying that point rather than nmaki ng assunptions.

8:42: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked the sponsor's staff to submt the
list of reasons she previously read.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 26, 2015



V. FRI EDLANDER relayed that the [|ist is wthin the
af orenenti oned Legislative Legal and Research Service's research

bri ef. She directed attention to [a letter from the Texas
Department of Public Safety, dated 3/4/15, included in the
commttee packet], which lists reasons relating to its own

unt est ed sexual assault kits, which at one tinme reached 20, 000.
8:43: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG ventured that another dinmension to [the
backlog] is a lack of resources. He added that SCDL would
acconplish nore if it had nore noney and "that cones back to
us." He encouraged the sponsor to "take the circle around.”

REPRESENTATI VE TARR expressed appreciation for Representative
Gruenberg's comrents, and acknow edged that |ack of resources is
a factor in the |ow nunber of cases actually going to trial and
is sonething that warrants consi deration

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded, "You bet, because then we
know where the faults may really lie."

8:45: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ said with regard to that, the Ofice of
the District Attorney has, historically, been <chronically
understaffed and under-resourced, which nmade it inpossible to
prosecute everything in need of prosecution. She asked whet her
an audit of "this very issue" was being conducted, or about to
be conducted, regarding the backlog in SCDL.

M5. FRIEDLANDER answered that she had not heard of such an
audit, especially on the untested sexual assault kits, because
this audit wouldn't just be about SCDL, it would al so coordinate
the nunber of untested sexual assault kits in the 150 |ocal |aw
enf orcenent agencies, hospitals, and ot her departnents.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ of fered her understanding that an overall
audit on SCDL was scheduled in order to ascertain what was being

tested or not tested, and she said she would I|ike nore
information. She opined that the sponsor's tinelines | ook good,
but may not be consistent with the overall audit. She cautioned

that w thout considering the overall conprehensive audit, the
audit proposed under HB 117 could end up being disjointed.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 26, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE TARR deferred to M. Dym as she explained she
was not aware of an overall audit being planned, although, HB 40
woul d require performance reviews. She offered that perhaps DPS
is next in line for a performance review, and SCDL woul d be part
of that consideration. She stressed that the overall goal is
expedi ency and efficiency in this process. She noted that Dean
WIllians, of DPS, was interested in potentially noving back the
dates in the legislation a bit, but that has not been discussed
in conjunction with any other audit.

8:48:35 AM

ORIN DM Forensic Laboratory Manager, Scientific Crine
Detection Laboratory (SCDL), Departnent of Public Safety (DPS)
relayed that under statute, SCDL and DOL are charged wth
devel opi ng sexual assault kits and fornms; therefore, the |ab
makes it a priority to provide the kits to agencies across the
state, free of charge. He explained that fromthe nonent a case
comes into the lab via a request for analysis, the lab knows
exactly what it has and where it is at all tines. He said the
| ab does not know the status of kits not submtted back to the
| ab.

8:50:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said it had been portrayed to the
commttee that DPS is eager for HB 117 to pass, which strikes
him as odd because it would increase the cost of analysis, and
yet there is a zero fiscal note. He said he would like to hear
from DPS, on paper, with regard to its stance on HB 117.

MR. DYM responding from the perspective of SCDL, said that
determining what Kkits have not been submitted that should be
submtted is a good thing. He deferred addressing the specifics
on how that occurs to a departnent head.

8:52: 07 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked M. Dym whether the |lab matches the nunber of
kits that are sent in with the nunber it sent out.

MR. DYM responded that the kit is an inventory item for
agenci es, which order a year's supply of kits at one tine. For
exanple, the Anchorage Police Departnent orders (indisc.). He
said another conplication in tracking the kits is that many of
the AST posts becone distribution hubs for agencies beyond them
For exanple, the AST in Bethel may order 80 kits, which are then

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 26, 2015



pushed out to other regions. In response to a followup
guestion from Chair Lynn, he estimated that at any given tineg,
there are approximately 500 kits in inventory, in different
agenci es t hroughout the state.

8:53: 29 AM

MR DYM in response to Representative Vazquez, shared his
pr of essi onal background. In response to a followup question
from Representative Vazquez, he described the process by which
the sexual assault test kits are submtted as evidence to the
|ab, and explained that |aw enforcenent agencies submt a
request for |aboratory service form- a contract to perform work
on the evidence submtted. He said police agencies submt the
evi dence, but the lab also conmunicates with DOL, which may be
i nvolved in the decision-nmaking on sone of the | arger cases.

8:55:20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked the average tine required to test a
kit.

MR DYM clarified that when considering service for sexual
assault, a kit could be a single item of evidence or a multi-
evidentiary item request for service; "it's not the only
evidence that's submtted.” He stated that the lab could
conplete a test in 24 hours when the need was urgent, but that
is not the normal turnaround tine. Routine analysis, start to
finish, of a DNA case is six weeks, and cases are worked in

batches for efficiency's sake. He explained that the current
average turnaround tinme for DNA cases - including all types of
crinmes, not just sexual assault - is 170 days. He rel ated that

the ol dest sexual assault request goes back to 16 nonths from
today's date, which he said is a vast inprovenent over the six-

pl us years previously. He stated that SCDL has been making
tremendous headway on the backlog, and although not where it
wants to be yet, it will continue to nake inprovenents.

CHAIR LYNN commented that it could take six nonths fromthe tine
the lab receives the kit back before the test results are
avai | abl e.

MR DYMreiterated that the ol dest sexual assault case currently
waiting at the lab to be analyzed is 1.5 years ol d.

8:57:16 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 26, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked what could be done to shorten that
tinmeline.

MR. DYM offered that SCDL has invested tinme in reworking how it

approaches scientific examnation and brought in several
i ndependent experts to evaluate the process and nake
recommendations in streamining it. He indicated that a goal is

to increase training and the nunber of analysts perform ng DNA
tests. He offered that the lab recently conpleted retooling the
entire process of Dbiological screening, and a supervisor
presented a paper in that regard to the Anerican Acadeny of
Forensic Science, because the l|lab stepped into a |eadership
position on how it screens sexual assault cases. In response to
Representative Vazquez' followup question, he said the process
took "so |long" because the lab has nore business than it could
conplete in a tinely fashion. Wen |osing an experienced staff
menber, it takes the lab one to two years to replace that
i ndi vidual at the sane experience |evel and capacity, he said.

CHAI R LYNN expressed amazenent at the length of tinme it takes to
recei ve results.

8:59:36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ comented that she is not anazed, and
asked whether either the previous or current governor [had
intervened], wth regard to setting forth an action plan to
remedy the situation of 1.5 years.

MR DYM replied that he routinely reports to the deputy
comm ssioner and the conmssioner of DPS, and that the
i nformati on has gone on to the governor's office as to the plan
i n addressing the backl og. He concurred that 1.5 years is an
excessive quantity of tinme; however, he views it as a definite
i nprovenent over six-plus years, wth a goal of a 30-day
turnaround tinme on cases.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ restated her question to inquire whether
anyone within the lab - M. Dyms director or anybody in a
| eadership position - had attenpted to acquire nore resources to
solve this issue and submtted "sonme type of action plan to
correct or renedy the situation.”

MR DYM noted that wthin the last fiscal year, the lab
requested and was granted an additional position for DNA
analysis to attenpt to reduce the turnaround tinme. He indicated
that part of the funding request for the new crinme |aboratory

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 26, 2015



was to "ease congestion” and increase [productivity] through the
use of "the DNA sciences.”

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ questioned the additional resources the
| ab requires.

MR. DYM indicated he has sufficient equipnment, space, and
staffing to acconplish the aforenentioned goal, but then asked

the desired tinme franme in acconplishing the goal. He offered
that if the goal is 30 days, he recomends outsourcing the
backlog to a private |aboratory, although that would probably
take about a year to acconplish. He estimated that the lab is

on track to catch up with the work itself in approximtely two
years, assum ng he does not |ose staff.

9:02: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ opined that two years is a long tine for
a victinms case to cone to justice.

MR.  DYM concurr ed. He said there are a nunber of options,
especially in a scenario in which "they're going to throw a pile
of noney at this and outsource it." He offered that 150 sexua

assault cases could take approximately eight to twelve nonths
for a private l|laboratory to conplete. He indicated that if he
could materialize five experienced DNA anal ysts at his doorstep,
he coul d achieve the sane result; however, there are no contract
DNA analysts available to hire in Jlong-term non-pernmanent
positions. He reiterated that subsequent to |losing one
experi enced analyst, it took him one year to find another
anal yst who would accept a job offer in Al aska, and another few
nmonths to get them working - approxinmately a year and half to
recover that productivity.

9:04: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked whether conpensation is the issue
in attracting qualified applicants.

MR. DYM answered that the lab pays at about the forty-eighth
percentile in the country, and receives between 0-1 qualified
applicants froma national search, and then |oses the applicants
when they discover they may never be able to afford a home in

Anchorage, which is a l|large issue. He offered that it is not
just in the realmof DNA testing, but in other areas of the I|ab,
such as finding a latent print analysts. He added, "I wll say

Scottsdale Police Departnment has also been advertising for the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 26, 2015



sane tinefrane, offering $30,000 a year nore than we do, and has
not successfully filled their position.”

9: 06: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  VAZQUEZ asked whet her \V/ g Dym had any
suggesti ons.

MR. DYM said the backlog at SCDL is his job to nanage, and while
he plans to nmethodically inprove it and increase capacity, it is
not an instantaneous process. He explained that the lab just
retooled (indisc.) nultiple screening (indisc.). He stated that
currently when a case cones to the lab, within 30 days the
initial process is conplete, and a report is sent to the agency
with those findings. He said SCDL is "getting nore information
today to give to them than they got a year ago."” He noted the
next step is to determne how to increase capacity per analyst.
He suggested bringing in entities to study the process and offer
i nput; however, he said the current budget is "tight for things
of that nature."

MR. DYM in response to a series of questions from
Representative Vazquez, offered that SCDL's operating budget is
$6 mllion. He related that there are currently 24 positions,
and of that $6 mllion, personnel expenses are $3.8 nmllion. He
said the annual costs for the electric bill and natural gas bil
are $240,000 and $100, 000, respectively. He indicated that SCDL
has (indisc.) mllion in prorates, which pay for network
i nfrastructure, t el ephone support, t he Ofice of t he
Conmi ssioner's fee, and adm nistrative services.

9:08: 48 AM

CHAI R LYNN asked M. Dymif he had given any of this information
to the House Finance Comm ttee.

MR. DYM responded that this was the first tine a breakdown of
expenditures had been requested. He reiterated that point at
the request of Representative Vazquez.

CHAIR LYNN opined that both the House and Senate Finance
Comm ttees need to receive this information.

9:09: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TALERICO recollected that +the bill sponsor
menti oned there were inconsistencies in collection of the kits

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 26, 2015



and information received by SCDL, and he asked whether M. Dym
is aware of the training of the people required to collect the
specinens and why there mght be inconsistencies in the
information SCDL receives. He asked whether the lab ever
rejected a kit because it was inproperly collected or pertinent
i nformati on was m ssi ng.

MR. DYM answered that SCDL has mnmde changes to its online
requests for |aboratory services, and - as of OCctober [2014] -
the online form requires additional information in mandatory
fields for the sexual assault kit in that when the sexual
assault kit box 1is checked, a supplenental sheet appears
requiring additional information in mandatory fields to close
t hat gap. He said when an officer submts a kit, he/she
provi des an evidence item along with a description in a "free-
text" description field. He said the descriptions vary w dely,
i ncl udi ng: "kit," "kit collected from - and the individual's
name, and "evidence collected.” He said predomnantly the word
"kit" is utilized, which is hel pful when doing a keyword search
to determne how many kits the |ab has. He specified that if
sonmeone gives him the nanme of a case, he can look into it and
report exactly what the evidence is on that case, but he said
that is "a little bit of a different search.” He said that is
where the inconsistency cones out. He related that the
subm tting agency owns the information it sends to SCDL, and the
lab's job is to do the analysis; therefore, the |ab does not
alter their descriptions, because it is their evidence.

9:11:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO presunmed there are a set of standards
for collection, but he wondered whether training is lacking in
terms of putting kits together, such as seals, date, and
initials. He reiterated his question as to whether sone Kkits
may becone tainted and unusable due to lack of training, and
whether M. Dym feels the manner in which kits are submtted to
the lab are sufficient or tainted in some manner.

MR. DYM explained that a lot of training is given through the
Sexual Assault Response Team (SART) training program the
bi ol ogi cal screeners actively working the kits go "out" to SART
trainings and, as part of the program provide presentations on
the kits regarding what is performed at the |aboratory. He said
the kits are being collected appropriately with a good set of
instructions, but the real issue is why a kit does not cone to
the | aboratory. He described the current business nodel - which
he said may have to change - as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 26, 2015



W are scientific analysis. |If there are questions to
be answered for the prosecution of a case, and the
scientific evidence is needed to answer that question,
we work it. In situations where scientific analysis
did not add value or was not needed for verification,
then the evidence was not sent to the crinme |aboratory
because it was not needed. Some exanples of that
woul d be a consent case, where presence of the suspect
to the wvictim is not in question, so scientific
analysis does not vyield an answer necessary for
prosecuti on. | will add, though, keep in mnd we are
an arrestee state: since 2007, if you are arrested of
a crinme against a person, you provide a sanple and we

put that in the database. So, in that case, the
suspect is still going into the national database for
searchi ng agai nst other cases. So, that need is being
met .

In the case of a no-suspect offense, that should be
comng to the crime |ab. | -- not being an
investigator, |'m not sure what circunstance would
give rise to that not being anal yzed.

9:14: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ reiterated her concern regarding the 170
days taken to test the kits, and M. Dym s best suggestion in
the fastest manner to deal with the backlog, and what resources
are needed to address it.

MR. DYM replied that currently SCDL has the capacity to handle
what cones in, while making significant decreases in the
backl og. He recommended outsourcing the suspect cases, in which

there is a known suspect, out of the backl og. He enphasi zed
that in no-suspect cases, it is critical to get the profiles
into the national database for searching. He expl ai ned that

private | aboratories do not have permi ssion to upload data into
that national database; that work falls upon SCDL. He opi ned
that relieving the lab of suspect cases would allow it to
concentrate on the backlog of no-suspect cases, and both
projects would nerge and conpl ete sinultaneously, and that could
be the last time a backlog in sexual assault cases is discussed
at the I ab. In response to Representative Vasquez, he relayed
that he has 60 no-suspect kits, and 111 suspect Kkits.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 26, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked how fast M. Dym could get the 111
suspect kits outsourced.

MR. DYM answered he would have to follow state procurenent
procedures, and indicated the last procurenent bid process he
oversaw took three nonths. In response to Representative
Vazquez' followup questions, he said if he has funding to
commt to the project, he could start the process tonorrow. He
estimated the funding required would be $3,000 per case,
multiplied by 111. 1In response to Chair Lynn, he clarified that
one contract could be made for all 111 kits.

9:19:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked whether M. Dym could find the
necessary $333, 000 anywhere in his budget.

VR. DYM answered that based wupon the |atest budgetary
projections, SCDL's budget will be at zero by July 1, 2015. In
response to Representative Vazquez' followup question, he
responded that the budget for the upcomng year on the Senate
and House side is |largely unchanged, with the exception that the
vacant position for a Forensic Scientist IIl for the Controlled
Substances Discipline was relinquished. He said that discipline
has an average turnaround tine of 18 days; therefore, he would
be hard-put to (indisc.) that position.

9:20: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked what can be done - in |ooking at
the system as a whole, not just legislatively, but budget-w se -
to make the systemnore effective, accurate, and expedient.

MR. DYM indicated the question may be too large in scope for him
to be able to come up with an answer on the spot. Neverthel ess,
he spoke about avenues he has been pursuing to inprove the
system He said he has been discussing the issue with police
chiefs and representatives of the state's major submtting
agencies to determne how best to close the gap in
m sunder st andings and inprove service wth each other. He
offered that the DOL is also present at that table, as is the
FBI representing federal agencies. He noted it is an excellent
avenue in ascertaining they all are working together and
determ ning what is inportant.

9:23: 07 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 26, 2015



LI EUTENANT RCDNEY DI AL, Deputy Comrander, A Detachnent, D vision
of Alaska State Troopers, Departnment of Public Safety (DPS),
advised that the nunber of sexual assault kits wth the
Departnment of Public Safety (DPS) is relatively few, as the
departnment's policy is to submt the kits to SCDL after they are

obt ai ned. Under the proposed |egislation, he noted, DPS is
required to verify information with 150 agencies across the
state and prepare a report. He offered that the departnent is

concerned about the tineline in which it is required to do so
He said that allowing the departnent a few additional nonths to
obtain the information may result in greater participation and
better information in determ ning individual cases. Li eut enant
Dial related that he asked his evidence technicians to conduct a
search of the trooper facilities in Southeast Alaska for
untested sexual assault kits and advised the total was four
kits: two were obtained in cases later determned to be
unfounded, and two were from cases where prosecution was
declined and the testing of the kits was not requested by the
Ofice of the District Attorney. He indicated that in other
areas of the state, there are larger evidence facilities, and as
an exanpl e, Fairbanks has approxinmately 20,000 itens stored, so
the search and research of kits wil | t ake | onger
Notwi thstanding that, he added that DPS determned it can
[ handl e the inventory] with its existing personnel and a [zero]
fiscal note. He offered exanples of instances wherein kits are
obt ai ned, but do not warrant testing, such as: the sex act was
not contested, and the issue is consent; the issue later
determ ned to be unfounded; the kit was obtained from a suspect
who subsequently died; it was believed the kit did not contain
useabl e DNA evidence; or the victim requested the kit not be
exam ned, but wanted it retained.

9:26: 34 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether there are frequent

occasions wherein the victim declines prosecution in donestic
abuse cases.

LI EUTENANT DIAL answered "not so much,” in that DPS has
approached donestic violence cases for many years from the
standpoint that the state will take up the case on behalf of the

victim- sonetines without the victims participation.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether the prosecutor [technica

difficulties] when there has been coercion for the victim to
"back off," whether the state goes after that perpetrator.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 26, 2015



LI EUTENANT DI AL answered that any tinme there is an initial
report from the wvictim who later recants, the first
consideration of DPS and the O fice of the District Attorney is
of coercion. He advised if the state can prove a case where an
individual intentionally puts pressure on a victim not to
participate in the prosecution, they look into to it for
possi bl e additional charges.

9:29: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  KELLER stated his assunption that every
controlled inventory item has a nunber, and he pointed to the
| egi sl ation, which discusses exam nation kits collected but not
submtted to a lab for various reasons. He asked the definition
of that term nology and whether Trooper Dial anticipates any
change.

9:31:17 AM

LI EUTENANT DI AL replied that the departnent's current policy is
that all kits go to SCDL, so the kits in the possession of the
departnment are "legacy cases.” He described those cases as
being fairly old, or cases where the kit was obtained wth
"real™ odd circunstances that nade sending it to the Ilab
unwar r ant ed. For exanple, he explained, if he collected a kit
from a suspect today and tonmorrow the suspect dies, the case
m ght not be sent in, although, it is their policy to send every
case to SCDL, which could be the reason sone of the ol der cases

are still in DPS s evidence facilities. He advised that the
departnment does not track unused kits. He added, "That could be
probl ematic ...." He explained that occasionally the kits are
positioned in different locations, such as their nedica
facilities, and sonetinmes the kits are (indisc. - overlapping
voices), while other tinmes the kits may becone damaged. He
said, "Sonetines we'll take those kits and cannibalize them and
use elenents of that kit for (indisc. - shuffling noise) crines.

He pointed out that once a kit is collected, strict electronic
tracking of that kit is inplemented and it 1is considered
evi dence.

9:33: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked what a kit is called that has been
used to coll ect evidence but not returned to SCDL.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 26, 2015



LI EUTENANT DI AL advised it is referred to as an evidence item
and, under definition in the electronic records managenent
system as a "sexual assault kit."

9: 34: 38 AM

SKYLER HEARN, Assistant Director, Law Enforcenent Support
D vision, Texas Departnment of Public Safety, advised that he
oversees the Law Enforcenent Support D vision, which includes
the crime |aboratory service, and was asked to participate in
this hearing as a resource on the bill. He said he has nore
agencies to poll, but the timefrane provided in which to report
the nunber of untested kits to the Texas Departnent of Public
Safety was 45 days. He advised it began 9/1/2012, and as of
January 2015 the departnent was still receiving reports. He
pointed out that nobst agencies in Texas do not have an
el ectronic nmethod of identifying whether or not a piece of
evi dence has been to a crinme lab, so they have to go through
every file and every kit to determ ne whether it has been sent
and anal yzed and returned or has not been tested.

9:36: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ referred to page 1, line 9, with regard
to "untested sexual exam nation kits", and opined there could be
confusion over a non-tested, brand new kit that has been sent by
SCDL to the |aw enforcenent agency and sits in inventory versus
a kit wherein evidence has been collected and is sitting on a
shel f, untested. She pointed out those are tw different
untested Kkits. She suggested distinguishing between the
different kits, and said she would |like to see an anendnent
clarifying that issue.

9:37: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR advi sed she could work with the departnent
in determining the language, and the audit that would follow
woul d di stinguish between the two. In response to a question
from Chair Lynn, she stated she would work with the departnent
to address concerns and give the information to the conmttee.

9:39: 07 AM
H LARY  MARTI N, At t or ney, Legi sl ative Legal and Research

Services, Legislative Affairs Agency, pointed out that the bil
does have a definition of untested sexual assault examn nation

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 26, 2015



kits, which nmeans a kit that has been <collected but not
subm tted.

M5. MARTIN, in response to Chair Lynn's question, agreed to work
with the sponsor to clarify issues.

CHAI R LYNN announced HB 117 was held in commttee.

HB 61- M LITARY MERI TORI OQUS AWARD LI CENSE PLATES

9:40: 28 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the final order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 61, "An Act relating to special notor vehicle
registration plates for recipients of the Bronze Star, Silver
Star, or other neritorious service awards; and providing for an
effective date."

9:40: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA, Al aska State Legislature, advised that
the Al aska Native Veteran's O ganization in Al aska brought this
to the attention of Representative Gara, and noted there are a
nunber of mlitary license plates in Al aska, but they skip over
honor for valor in conbat. He said that the one Al aska Medal of
Honor recipient is covered, but there are a few other nedals
menbers of the various branches receive.

CHAI R LYNN asked whether there is a specific license plate for
t he Medal of Honor recipient in statute.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA replied that it is authorized by statute
al t hough, no one has applied for one. For background purposes
he advised that Representative Herron wants to raise the $250
which is the cost of printing that |icense plate.

9:42:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA continued that the intent of the |egislation
is to honor those veterans who risked their |ives, engaged in
conbat, and denonstrated valor by saving other |Ilives. He
pointed out policy calls wthin the legislation, and stated
there are legislative license plates, but conpared to people

engaged in conbat against the eneny and denonstrated valor,
those people are nore worthy to have designation, if they so
desire. Currently, the mssing nedals include: t he
di stingui shed service crosses, which apply to all branches of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 26, 2015



the mlitary for risking their life in conbat and denonstrating
valor; the silver star, for extraordinary valor in conbat; and
the bronze star "V," for valor in conbat. He noted valor is not
a word taken lightly. He explained the second purpose of the
bill is that the sponsor does not want to create a |icense plate
bill every year, as new nedals wll be created in the future.
He said, "The departnent, without a new bill, has the power to
add other license plates that are defined by ... acts of valor,"
and described that acts of valor, through the mlitary, nean
acts of valor in conbat.

9:45: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed out that he had prepared an
anmendnent and asked whether Representative Gara supports the
amendnent .

REPRESENTATI VE GARA advi sed he does support the anendnent, as it
makes the bill stronger.

9:45:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked for «clarification of what the
Department  of Motor Vehicles can authori ze, as far as
personal i zed pl ates.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA answered that they can only, in this
category and wunder this bill, add license plates reflecting
honors of wvalor, which is valor in conbat. For exanple, he
said, a marine medal was discontinued in 1940, and occasionally
a new nedal is added, and the intent is to not have a bill each
time that happens. He explained that wunder HB 61, the
Departnment of Mlitary and Veteran's Affairs could add those
license plates at the request of a recipient.

9:46: 16 AM

LAURENCE GORDAOFF, Al aska Native Veterans Association, advised
that the mssion of the Alaska Native Veterans Association is to
answer the concerns and needs of the state's veterans, help the
community offer respect to all veterans, stay non-political, and
strive for all Alaska Native veterans to have a voice. He
offered that he was told an Afghani stan veteran who asked the
Departnment of Mdtor Vehicles in Anchorage for a bronze star
license plate for his vehicle was told there is no such plate in
Al aska. He offered additional incidents regarding Al aska
veterans and |icense plates. He said the bronze star I|icense

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- March 26, 2015



plate offers a sense of pride and closure to the bronze star
recipients and offers recognition to the service they gave to
ensure the nation's freedom

CHAIR LYNN closed public testinmony on HB 61, after ascertaining
that no one further wshed to testify.

9:49: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent
[1], which read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 2, lines 4 and 5, following "reflecting”
Renmove "meritorious service and"
Page 2, line 8, followng "reflecting:
Renove "neritorious service and"
CHAI R LYNN obj ected for discussion.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG explained that veterans can receive
nmeritorious nedals that do not involve heroism but that is not
the intent of the sponsors. He advised the intent is to involve
heroism in conbat individuals, and the |anguage is narrow so
menbers know exactly what they are voting for.

CHAIR LYNN interjected that the addition of a "V' in relation to
a bronze star indicates not only neritorious service, but also
val or.

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG expressed that [language w thin sub-
subparagraph (jj)] is included because other nedals neet the
criteria but are nore conplicated, such as the Presidential Unit
Accommodation for the entire unit, which is rarely given. He
advised that arising issues are left to the two departnments to
make a determ nation

9:51: 54 AM

CHAIR LYNN renoved his objection. There being no further
obj ection, Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

9:52:10 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 26, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report CSHB 61(M.V), as anended,
out of conmttee wth individual recommendations and the
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB
61(STA) noved fromthe House State Affairs Standing Comrittee.

9:52: 58 AM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:52
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 26, 2015



